

Subd. 6. **FALSE STATEMENTS.** (a) A person may not knowingly make a false material statement or representation in the report filed in accordance with Laws 1995, chapter 168, section 10, subdivision 2. As used in this subdivision, "knowingly" has the meaning given in Minnesota Statutes, section 609.671, subdivision 2.

(b) A person found to have knowingly made a false material statement or representation shall be subject to the administrative penalties and process set forth in Minnesota Statutes, section 116.072.

Sec. 10. Laws 1995, chapter 168, section 19, is amended to read:

Sec. 19. **REPEALER.**

Sections 8 to 10 and 12 to 18 are repealed effective July 1, 1999.

Sec. 11. **REPEALER.**

Minnesota Statutes 1994, section 115A.56, is repealed. Laws 1995, chapter 168, section 11, is repealed.

Sec. 12. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This act is effective the day following final enactment.

Presented to the governor March 19, 1996

Signed by the governor March 21, 1996, 1:58 p.m.

CHAPTER 360—H.F.No. 3217

An act relating to claims against the state; providing for payment of various claims; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1994, section 3.739, subdivisions 2 and 2a.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. **DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS.**

The amounts in this section are appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of corrections for payment under Minnesota Statutes, section 3.739, to service providers as indicated in this section in full and final payment of claims against the state for medical services provided to individuals who were injured while performing community service or sentencing to service work for correctional purposes. These appropriations are available until June 30, 1997.

(a) For claims under \$500.00 each and other claims already paid by the department.....\$5,614.30.

(b) For medical services provided to Terry Grunwald, who suffered injuries while performing community work service in Todd county.....\$652.16.

(c) For medical services provided to Mark Rogalski, who suffered injuries while performing sentencing to service work in Todd county.....\$581.75.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

(d) For medical services provided to Rhonda Snyder, who suffered injuries while performing community work service in Anoka county.....\$272.00.

Sec. 2. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES.

\$96.36 is appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of human services for claims under Minnesota Statutes, section 256.737, that have already been paid. This appropriation is available until June 30, 1997.

Sec. 3. DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES.

The amounts in this section are appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of natural resources for payment to the persons named in this section in full and final payment of claims against the state for the reasons given. These appropriations are available until June 30, 1997.

(a) Jack Gow, HCRA, Box 453, McGregor, MN 55760, for expenses incurred in buying back land after a new survey by the department.....\$1,535.62.

(b) Bernard Schmalzbauer, 4648 Clark Avenue, White Bear Lake, MN 55110, for expenses incurred because of erroneous information provided by the department.....\$4,000.00. The department shall pay an additional \$4,000.00 to Mr. Schmalzbauer from its existing appropriations.

Sec. 4. DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE.

\$4,180.40 is appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of revenue to pay a refund of use tax overpaid in 1989 and for which a refund claim was not filed until after the statute of limitations had expired.

Sec. 5. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION.

The department of transportation shall pay \$3,231.25 to Mr. Joseph Hudak for legal expenses incurred in performance of his duties as an employee of the department.

Sec. 6. DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS.

Subdivision 1. APPROPRIATION. The amounts in this section are appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of veterans affairs for payment to the persons named in this section in full and final payment of claims against the state for adjusted compensation arising from World War I, World War II, the Korean Conflict, and Vietnam service. These appropriations are available until June 30, 1997.

Subd. 2. WORLD WAR I; BENEFICIARY. Dorothy Thorshov, 1675 Livingston Avenue, West St. Paul, MN 55118.....\$210.00.

Subd. 3. WORLD WAR II. James V. Ahern, 14355 Cameo Avenue, Rosemount, MN 55068.....\$60.00.

Donald B. Anderson, Route 3, Box 656, Pine City, MN 55063.....\$150.00.

George E. Anderson, 131 Monroe Street #311, Anoka, MN 55303.....\$210.00.

Gerald I. Anderson, 1126 Karyl Place, Roseville, MN 55113.....\$225.00.

Jack D. Anderson, 10418 Harriet, Bloomington, MN 55420.....\$120.00.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Lawrence E. Anderson, 5529 28th Avenue South, Minneapolis, MN 55417.....\$270.00.

Robert M. Anderson, 18025 Cannon City Boulevard, Cannon City, MN 55021.....\$90.00.

George P. Andrews, 9907 Elliot Avenue South, Bloomington, MN 55420.....\$255.00.

Myron A. J. Bakke, 1213 9th Street SE., Willmar, MN 56201.....\$90.00.

Lawrence M. Balaschko, 100 S. Montgomery Avenue, Le Center, MN 56057.....\$45.00.

Irennes Baron, PO Box 201, Pierz, MN 56364.....\$375.00.

Arnold L. Bailey, 9119 Tippe Canoe Street, Circle Pines, MN 55014.....\$400.00.

Ralph B. Berg, 515 9th Avenue, Madison, MN 56256.....\$255.00.

Betty Blahut (Skaja), 8837 Norway Street NW, Coon Rapids, MN 55433.....\$150.00.

A. B. Blalock, 140 W. Walts #12, Deland, FL 32720.....\$300.00.

Harvey J. Bligard, 8308 Aldrich Avenue South, Bloomington, MN 55420.....\$240.00.

Leo N. Boldt, RR 1, Box 19A, Mountain Lake, MN 56159.....\$140.00.

Leo C. Bolger, 640 2nd Avenue, Mendota Heights, MN 55118.....\$400.00.

Gloris V. Brekke, 404 9th Street N. #117, Virginia, MN 55792.....\$30.00.

Cyrus C. Brown, 3335 Zinran Avenue South, Minneapolis, MN 55426.....\$90.00.

Raymond J. Brown, RR 1, Box 114, Royalton, MN 56373.....\$165.00.

Robert E. Brown, 3304 Wendhurt NE, Minneapolis, MN 55418.....\$400.00.

Kenneth W. Bull, 105 Lake Avenue, Box 41, Gaylord, MN 55334.....\$195.00.

Lloyd W. Burkholder, 608 Keniston Street N., Champlin, MN 55316.....\$15.00.

Gordon E. Bystedt, 404 N. Central Avenue, Duluth, MN 55807.....\$75.00.

Robert J. Carter, 318 Park Row, St. Peter, MN 56082.....\$20.00.

Robert A. Cartier, 1621 Park Avenue, White Bear Lake, MN 55110.....\$195.00.

Roy Cherrier, Route 1, Box 2337, Miles City, MT 59301.....\$400.00.

Michael Chovancek, 610 Akard Circle, Reno, NV 89503.....\$270.00.

Richard C. Clarke, 460 7th Avenue SW, Wells, MN 56097.....\$30.00.

Phyllis R. Cohen, 300 Shelard Parkway #108, St. Louis Park, MN 55426.....\$40.00.

Willis H. Cummings, Route 1, Box 71A, Ogema, MN 56569.....\$400.00.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- John D. Dahl, 4121 W. 7th Street, Duluth, MN 55807.....\$150.00.
- Raymond F. Dahnert, 620 12th Avenue SE., Waseca, MN 56093.....\$165.00.
- Duane S. Dann, 1216 Madison Avenue, Detroit Lakes, MN 56501.....\$400.00.
- John B. Doyle, Box 271 Oak Ridge, St. James, MN 56081.....\$30.00.
- Donald R. Dufek, 11882 67th Lane N., Largo, FL 34643.....\$270.00.
- Gene R. Dumas, 7135 17th Avenue S., Richfield, MN 55423.....\$90.00.
- James R. Emmons, 10545 Dupont Road S., Bloomington, MN 55431.....\$400.00.
- Bernard R. Enderle, 2725 5th Avenue E., Hibbing, MN 55746.....\$45.00.
- Raymond W. Erickson, Route 2, Box 131, East Grand Forks, MN 56721.....\$400.00.
- Dewayne T. Ernesti, 5311 NW Walnut Street, Vancouver, WA 98663.....\$195.00.
- Carl L. Eschenbacher, 3900 Highland Scenic Drive, Baxter, MN 56401.....\$45.00.
- Wallace H. Evans, 724 N. Front Street, Crookston, MN 56716.....\$400.00.
- Archie N. Foss, 505 N. 5th Street, Montrose, CO 81401.....\$45.00.
- Henry W. Fritchman, 9718 14th Avenue S., Bloomington, MN 55425.....\$150.00.
- William J. Fyten, 7700 36th Avenue N., Crystal, MN 55427.....\$30.00.
- George W. Gerber, 3434 Lyndale Avenue N., Minneapolis, MN 55412.....\$90.00.
- Merton W. Geslin, 4664 Gettysburg Avenue N., New Hope, MN 55408.....\$210.00.
- Ralph W. Getchman, Route 1, Box 251, Sandstone, MN 55072.....\$345.00.
- John P. Gothmann, 237 E. Main Street, Waconia, MN 55387.....\$60.00.
- Cecil H. Goodnough, 62 Birch Boulevard, Babbitt, MN 55706.....\$120.00.
- Mary E. Grant (Hines), 1752 Dodd Road, Mendota Heights, MN 55118.....\$230.00.
- John W. Green, 650 217th Avenue NE., Cedar, MN 55011.....\$285.00.
- Mary M. Gregg, 4300 W. River Parkway #308, Minneapolis, MN 55406.....\$120.00.
- Robert V. Groff, 4757 15th Avenue S., Minneapolis, MN 55407.....\$225.00.
- Damie C. Gruber, 1625 Bohland, St. Paul, MN 55116.....\$330.00.
- Genevieve E. Gust, 1502 Koester Court #13, Northfield, MN 55057.....\$160.00.
- Chadwick C. Hagberg, 1530 E. 1st Street #A, Duluth, MN 55812.....\$135.00.
- Leonard Hagemeyer, 713 6th Avenue NW., Clara City, MN 56222.....\$70.00.
- Harvey C. Halpaus, W 11778 State Road 35, Prescott, WI 54021.....\$360.00.
- Roger A. Hanson, Route 3, Box 34, Fosston, MN 56542.....\$45.00
- Donald C. Heir, 2977 Marion Street, Roseville, MN 55113.....\$385.00.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- Vincent C. Hencier, 1530 Bellows #102, West St. Paul, MN 55118.....\$135.00.
- Gregory P. Henry, Route 3, Pierz, MN 56364.....\$90.00.
- Robert C. Herberg, 7549 Fremont Avenue N., Brooklyn Park, MN 55444.....\$30.00.
- Dale D. Higgins, 8013 County Road 8, Box 55, Clear Lake, MN 55319.....\$135.00.
- Wilbert Hinrichs, Box 742, Clara City, MN 56222.....\$400.00.
- Howard E. Hintsala, RR 2, Box 58, New York Mills, MN 56567.....\$60.00.
- Roy Hoglund, 19 Garfield Drive, Cathedral City, CA 92234.....\$300.00.
- Paul J. Huch, 1011 Foltl Court #306, Hopkins, MN 55343.....\$400.00.
- Burdette R. Hummer, RR 3, Box 52, Wells, MN 56097.....\$360.00.
- Richard H. Jacobs, HCR Box 292, Deer River, MN 56636.....\$210.00.
- Gordon C. Johnson, 2314 W. 3rd Street, Duluth, MN 55806.....\$75.00.
- Robert Kakaygeesick, PO Box 190, Warroad, MN 56763.....\$365.00.
- Joe Kalata, 1997A Gold Trail, Eagan, MN 55122.....\$345.00.
- Louis L. Kalis, RR 1, Box 178, Wells, MN 56097.....\$45.00.
- Marvin E. Karnitz, 4220 Webster Avenue, St. Louis Park, MN 55416.....\$255.00.
- Raymond A. Kennedy, 1609 W. Morgan Street, Duluth, MN 55811.....\$300.00.
- Laurence E. Keppers, 410 SW Ethel Street, Brainerd, MN 56401.....\$180.00.
- Thomas J. Kerrigan, 2022 Sand Hill Road, Menlo Park, CA 94025.....\$270.00.
- George J. Klosowski, 4853 Division, White Bear Lake, MN 55110.....\$285.00.
- Clinton W. Knapp, 205 Lake Park Boulevard, Fairmont, MN 56031.....\$90.00.
- Charles H. Knippel, 409 12th Street SE, Austin, MN 55912.....\$30.00.
- Donald W. Koza, 1171 E. Idaho Avenue, St. Paul, MN 55106.....\$250.00.
- James R. Kubesh, 1166 E. 7th Street, #11, St. Paul, MN 55106.....\$195.00.
- Harold Landwehr, 134 7th Avenue N., Waite Park, MN 56387.....\$270.00.
- Merlin M. Larson, PO Box 181, Maynard, MN 56260.....\$400.00.
- Geraldine A. Levasseur-Neufeld, 5036 Thompson Road, Hermantown, MN 56248.....\$230.00.
- Robert R. Loeffler, 2680 N. Oxford Street #110, Roseville, MN 55113.....\$300.00.
- Lorraine M. Loos, 1832 E. Idaho Avenue, St. Paul, MN 55119.....\$190.00.
- Ralph J. MacHolda, 6605 Southdale Rd, Edina, MN 55435.....\$15.00.
- Truman J. Malchow, 6832 Blaisdale Avenue S., Richfield, MN 55423.....\$400.00.
- Donald J. Manoleff, 3325 20th Avenue S., Minneapolis, MN 55407.....\$240.00.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

- Archilles C. Massahos, 3776 Nathan Way, Palo Alto, CA 94303.....\$285.00.
- Lester C. Mattson, 9261 Highway 7, Kelsey, MN 55724.....\$30.00.
- Harry F. Mehr, 1402 17th Street S., St. Cloud, MN 56301.....\$315.00.
- John D. Messer, 4040 Lakewood Boulevard, Naples, FL 33962.....\$75.00.
- Charles W. Meyer, 425 Vinewood Lane N., Minneapolis, MN 55441 \$210.00.
- James Molnar, 10635 Grant St., Box 153, Chisago City, MN 55013.....\$135.00.
- Harry R. Mydra, 7051 Robinwood Trail, Woodbury, MN 55125.....\$285.00.
- Eleanor A. Myers, 10211 S. Cedar Lake Road, #119, Minnetonka, MN 55305.....\$235.00.
- George E. Myrold, 304 S. Minnesota, Crookston, MN 56716.....\$20.00.
- Harold L. Nash, PO Box 127, Murdock, MN 56271.....\$40.00.
- Patrick J. Needham, 2320 W. 1st Street, Duluth, MN 55806.....\$250.00.
- Alfred A. Neitzel, RR 2, Box 255, Hinckley, MN 55037.....\$380.00.
- Charles E. Nelson, 2109 W. 90th Street, #6, Bloomington, MN 55431.....\$270.00.
- Frederick N. Nelson, 255 N. 8th Avenue, Waite Park, MN 56387.....\$300.00.
- Gustaf A. Nelson, 3530 Ulysses St. NE, Minneapolis, MN 55418.....\$375.00.
- James E. Neudecker, 1500 82nd Street, Victoria, MN 55386.....\$50.00.
- Norbert E. Nilsson, 221 Division Street, Sandstone, MN 55072.....\$75.00.
- Robert E. Nordby, 3855 Abbott Avenue N., Robbinsdale, MN 55422.....\$30.00.
- Merle D.C. Nordling, 123 N. 6th Street, Box 52, Hallock, MN.....56728.....\$60.00.
- Robert M. Noyes, Route 3, Box 95, Detroit Lakes, MN 56554.....\$30.00.
- Earl C. Olson, 3038 Emerson Avenue S., Minneapolis, MN 55408.....\$100.00.
- Glen B. Olson, 5436 Zealand Avenue N., New Hope, MN 55428.....\$400.00.
- Robert T. Orth, HC 2, Box 607, Longville, MN 56655.....\$255.00.
- Edward A. Ostertag, PO Box 490, North Branch, MN 55056.....\$400.00.
- Henry M. Ostlund, 3714 27th Avenue S., Minneapolis, MN 55406.....\$135.00.
- Octavian T. Papes, 1239 Lerida Way B, Pacifica, CA 94044.....\$240.00.
- Fred J. Parenti, 2908 W. 71 1/2 Street, Richfield, MN 55423.....\$300.00.
- Robert O. Paulson, 11252 423rd Avenue, Waseca, MN 56093.....\$30.00.
- Angelo F. Pergol, 721 8th Avenue S., #8, Sauk Rapids, MN 56379.....\$350.00.
- Edward T. Peterka, 91 Southwood Drive, Vadnais Heights, MN 55127.....\$255.00.
- Robert A. Petersburg, PO Box 167, Kennedy, MN 56733.....\$400.00.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- Francis M. Peterson, 5355 340th Street, Stacy, MN 55079.....\$75.00.
- James E. Peterson, 2701 W. 15th Street, Duluth, MN 55806.....\$390.00.
- Walter H. Peterson, 1819 South Street, Duluth, MN 55812.....\$60.00.
- Clyde W. Phillips, 3025 40th Street NW., Montevideo, MN 56265.....\$400.00.
- Leo C. Piasecki, 32670 N. Center Court, Center City, MN 55012.....\$30.00.
- Charles J. Potter, 2283 Reimer Road, Duluth, MN 55804.....\$235.00.
- Donald J. Priebe, 7225 Bloomington Avenue, Richfield, MN 55423.....\$270.00.
- Lyle H. Quigley, 1001 E. 80th Street #207, Bloomington, MN 55420.....\$135.00.
- Alden B. Rabey, Box 72, Knife River, MN 55609.....\$210.00.
- William E. Ranta, 10475 Jefferson Street NE., Blaine, MN 55434.....\$75.00.
- Jay F. Rasset, 8718 State Highway 25 SW., Montrose, MN 55363.....\$315.00.
- Rene H. Regeimbal, 609 N. Broadway, Crookston, MN 56716.....\$400.00.
- Lloyd J. Reitmeier, Route 3, Box 79, Crookston, MN 56716.....\$60.00.
- John G. Rhymer, 5836 Xerxes Avenue S., Edina, MN 55410.....\$270.00.
- Albert C. Ringate, 5141 Washburn Avenue N., Minneapolis, MN 55430.....\$30.00.
- Robert R. Ringsred, 2929 Lake Avenue S., Duluth, MN 55802.....\$90.00.
- Eugene A. Roedl, 5756 Sheridan Avenue S., Minneapolis, MN 55410.....\$30.00.
- Norris A. Rolfson, 4415 Dodge Street, Duluth, MN 55804.....\$195.00.
- Donovan B. Rygh, HCR Box 4, Wannaska, MN 56761.....\$45.00.
- Allen R. Sandvik, 5019 Wooddale Lane, Edina, MN 55424.....\$230.00.
- Charles R. Sannes, 224 Lincoln Avenue, Crookston, MN 56716.....\$340.00.
- Robert L. Schedin, 440 Central Avenue S., Milaca, MN 56353.....\$270.00.
- Bernard A. Schlichting, 6044 Girard Avenue N., Brooklyn Center, MN 55430.....\$240.00.
- Floyd F. Schmid, 2500 Auburn Drive, Victoria, MN 55386.....\$225.00.
- Rolard Schmidt, RR 2, Box 106, Wabasha, MN 55981.....\$400.00.
- Thomas M. Schneider, 8135 Quamoclit, Victoria, MN 55386.....\$30.00.
- Alvin A. Schoenecker, 1912 Shorewood Lane, Mound, MN 55364.....\$60.00.
- Walter L. Schopf, 2828 Johnson Street NE., Minneapolis, MN 55418.....\$255.00.
- Joseph O. Schuster, 1900 Wachtler Avenue, Mendota Heights, MN 55118.....\$180.00.
- Howard E. Shogren, 12055 18th Avenue SE. #127, Big Lake, MN 55309.....\$255.00.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout-

- Mike Skerbine, PO Box 2113, Kelly Lake, MN 55754.....\$135.00.
- Frederick N. Smith, 9023 Mary Avenue NW #101, Seattle, WA 98117.....\$180.00.
- Max Smith, 1000 Edgerton #510, St. Paul, MN 55101.....\$20.00.
- Roger J. Smith, 3420 Zane Avenue N., Crystal, MN 55422.....\$315.00.
- Sylvia A. Smogard (Bale), Route 2, Box 52, Madison, MN 56256.....\$270.00.
- Joseph L. Sonnek, 701 7th Street SW., Wells, MN 56097.....\$60.00.
- Melvin N. Starr, 417 Arthur Street, Hopkins, MN 55343.....\$285.00.
- Lionel L. Stelck, PO Box 447, Motley, MN 56466.....\$195.00.
- Darrell R. Storms, 223 N. Bryondale, Wayzata, MN 55391.....\$195.00.
- William A. Stransky, 8992 Shields Lake Path, Faribault, MN 55021.....\$360.00.
- Robert Strese, 14575 Burma Avenue #301, Rosemount, MN 55068.....\$45.00.
- Reed B. Swanson, 210 Candlestick Circle, Annandale, MN 55302.....\$135.00.
- Duwayne V. Swenson, RFD #2, Box 114, Dawson, MN 56232.....\$45.00.
- Arthur A. Templin, 826 Phyllis Circle, Anaheim, CA 92806.....\$90.00.
- Dwight C. Thompson, 4955 Arnold Road, Duluth, MN 55803.....\$400.00.
- Lloyd G. Thorsen, 115 5th Street SE., Montgomery, MN 56069.....\$145.00.
- Arthur M. Thorson, 5231 N. Greenwood Boulevard, Spokane, WA 99205.....\$120.00.
- Edwin J. Tousignant, 4870 150th Street W., Apple Valley, MN 55124.....\$45.00.
- Raymond F. Triplett, 16203 Hillvale Avenue, Monte Sereno, CA 95030.....\$165.00.
- Francis L. Viaene, 240 2nd Avenue SW #107, Milaca, MN 56353.....\$70.00.
- Donald D. Voigt, 1900 2nd Avenue SE., Austin, MN 55912.....\$20.00.
- Joseph J. Vruno, 98 W. Arion Street, West St. Paul, MN 55118.....\$195.00.
- Robert J. Warner, 704 Wells Street, St. Paul, MN 55106.....\$195.00.
- Theodore T. Weglarz, 14111 Grand Street NE., Minneapolis, MN 55413.....\$450.00.
- Raymond P. Weidman, 2099 E. Minnehaha, St. Paul, MN 55119.....\$300.00.
- Ruby F. Wells, 202 NW 11th Avenue #402, Austin, MN 55912.....\$240.00.
- John A. Whiteside, 8982 E. Wakemup Village, Cook, MN 55723.....\$195.00.
- Edward J. Wilder, 994 Berne Drive, Box 4409, San Bernardino, CA 92325.....\$300.00.
- Donald A. Wilkie, 11469 155th Avenue NE., Oak Park, MN 56357.....\$75.00.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Arthur E. Wolch, Route 2, Box 120-A, Cushing, MN 56443.....\$330.00.

Walter J. Wolinski, 3822 Brookdale Circle, Brooklyn Park, MN 55443.....\$285.00.

Douglas C. Workman, 5060 NW Terrace View Drive, Bremerton, WA 98312.....\$90.00.

Robert S. Worwa, 1906 W. 84th Street, Bloomington, MN 55431.....\$30.00.

Victor E. Young, 7815 Hearthside Avenue S. #303, Cottage Grove, MN 55016, \$345.00.

Peter L. Zwak, Route 2, Box 21, Royalton, MN 56373.....\$60.00.

Subd. 4. **WORLD WAR II; BENEFICIARY.** Clarence Albrecht, 2503 33rd Avenue NE., St. Anthony, MN 55418.....\$135.00.

Beverly J. Brouellette, 6354 E. Norris Road, Gordon, WI 54838.....\$285.00.

Beatrice E. Burroughs, 12800 Marion Lane W. #814, Minnetonka, MN 55305.....\$195.00.

Jeanette L. Carlson, 9300 Cedar Avenue S. #221, Bloomington, MN 55425.....\$180.00.

Frances L. Doebler, 33696 Xenon Drive NW., Princeton, MN 55371.....\$165.00.

Doris C. Duenow, 6203 36th Avenue N., Crystal, MN 55422.....\$285.00.

Delores E. Elfstrand, 350 W. Harrison Street, Annandale, MN 55302.....\$45.00.

Blanche L. Elk, HCR 4, Box 548, Aitkin, MN 55760.....\$165.00.

Josephine Favorite-Hughes, 4025 Highway 101 N., Plymouth, MN 55446.....\$400.00.

Marlys L. Herman, HC 69, Box 158B, Isle, MN 56342.....\$210.00.

Jane E. Kintner, 404 9th Street N. #122, Virginia, MN 55792.....\$40.00.

Bernadine E. Klein, 349 104th Lane NE., Blaine, MN 55434.....\$330.00.

Naomi Knudsen, 810 Boxelder Street, Marshall, MN 56258.....\$240.00.

Irene E. Knutson, 4524 Fillmore Street NE., Columbia Heights, MN 55421.....\$395.00.

Marjorie B. Knutson, 2953 Palm Lake Drive, Sarasota, FL 34234.....\$325.00.

Delores T. Lach, 9000 Glen Edin Lane, Brooklyn Park, MN 55443.....\$225.00.

Alice L. Mariette, 5425 45th Avenue N., Robbinsdale, MN 55422.....\$210.00.

Dorothy Mueller, 2910 E. Franklin #1710, Minneapolis, MN 55406.....\$225.00.

Viola E. Musegades, 1013 6th Avenue SW., Faribault, MN 55021.....\$315.00.

Merla R. C. Neumann, 4405 Lafayette Lane, Spring Park, MN 55384.....\$270.00.

Isabella T. Powell, 2331 W. Sinto, Spokane, WA 99216.....\$390.00.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

- Laurence B. Priebe, 2736 E. 3rd Avenue N., St. Paul, MN 55105.....\$130.00.
- Emma D. Ryan, 2522 6th Avenue E., Hibbing, MN 55746.....\$255.00.
- Lillian A. Sevcik, 216 Linden N., Northfield, MN 55057.....\$20.00.
- Alma M. Sheggerud, 6400 York Avenue S. #308, Edina, MN 55435.....\$150.00.
- Howard Smith, Cloverleaf Drive, Minneapolis, MN.....\$200.00.
- Leona Smith-Laurie, 1545 Osceola Avenue, St. Paul, MN 55105.....\$200.00.
- Warren J. Trudeau, 1450 Champion Drive, New Brighton, MN 55112.....\$150.00.
- John E. Turek Jr., 9075 County Road, Carver, MN 55313.....\$13.33.
- Robert R. Turek, PO Box 79, Montgomery, MN 56069.....\$13.33.
- Karen J. Turek-David, 1310 10th Street SW., Faribault, MN 55021.....\$13.33.
- Dolores G. Vonfeldt, 409 1st Street SW., Austin, MN 55912.....\$20.00.
- Elizabeth L. Waldemar, 3643 Washburn Avenue N., Minneapolis, MN 55412.....\$60.00.
- Gladys C. Wolinski, 1120 5th Street NE., Minneapolis, MN 55413.....\$345.00.
- Joyce K. Woytasek-Basham, 3199 W. Owasso Boulevard, Shoreview, MN 55126.....\$280.00.
- Eleanor Zustiak, HC 2, Box 30, Blackduck, MN 56630.....\$300.00.
- Subd. 5. **KOREAN.** Kenneth T. Belair Jr., 899 S. Cleveland #300, St. Paul, MN 55116.....\$7.50.
- Charles A. Belmont, PO Box 144, Henning, MN 56551.....\$120.00.
- Odell M. Bjerkness, Route 1, Box 221A, Ogema, MN 56575.....\$292.50.
- Virgil A. Bjork, 1810 Becker Avenue SE., Willmar, MN 56201.....\$142.50.
- John R. Bjorn, 7143 Oak Point Curve, Bloomington, MN 55438.....\$30.00.
- Donald H. Brodtmann, 56 NW 5th Street, Forest Lake, MN 55025.....\$157.50.
- Richard R. Corporon, 700 14th Street NE., Austin, MN, 55912.....\$7.50.
- James P. Corriveau, 5117 Meadow Ridge, Edina, MN 55439.....\$37.50.
- Thomas Davison, 3824 57th Avenue N., Brooklyn Center, MN 55429.....\$15.00.
- Robert D. George, Box 178, Hinckley, MN 55037.....\$82.50.
- Arden F. Hakes, RR 2, Box 312, Jackson, MN 56143.....\$90.00.
- Roger E. Haselow, 1286 Highway 61 E., Silver Bay, MN 55614.....\$7.50.
- Robert L. Henry, 10412 Morgan Avenue S., Bloomington, MN 55431.....\$45.00.
- Harold S. Holtzman, 809 12th Street, Wabasha, MN 55981.....\$172.50.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- Wallace P. Houle, 11825 196th Avenue NW, Elk River, MN 55330.....\$200.00.
- Leon E. Hulett, 10425 Yukon Street NW, Coon Rapids, MN 55433.....\$97.50.
- James R. Huttel, 422 W. Maple Grove Road, Duluth, MN 55811.....\$180.00.
- Robert E. Jensen, 3907 Jackson Street NE., Minneapolis, MN 55421.....\$120.00.
- Fredrick P. Just, 9960 Dakota Circle, Bloomington, MN 55438.....\$127.50.
- Kenneth Kingbird, PO Box 40, Ponemah, MN 56666.....\$15.00.
- Milton R. Kroschel, 78 Many Levels Road, Dellwood, MN 55110.....\$22.50.
- James D. Larson, Box 45, Osakis, MN 56360.....\$200.00.
- Dewayne N. Lien, PO Box 271, Belgrade, MN 56312.....\$15.00.
- Patrick B. Long, 1335 Oakcrest Avenue, St. Paul, MN 55113.....\$105.00.
- Joseph J. Mach, PO Box 240714, Apple Valley, MN 55124.....\$112.50.
- William A. Mayhew, 1104 11th Avenue SW., Austin, MN 55912.....\$15.00.
- Richard C. McMonigal, 615 9th Avenue S., South St. Paul, MN 55075.....\$82.50.
- John H. Moyer, 2916 Beachwood Avenue, Wayzata, MN 55391.....\$262.50.
- Alfred A. Neitzel, RR 2, Box 255, Hinckley, MN 55037.....\$90.00.
- Richard P. Neumann, 525 S. 72nd Avenue W., Duluth, MN 55807.....\$322.00.
- Emery C. Olson, HCR 1, Box 114, Athestane, WI 54104.....\$97.50.
- Thomas D. Olson, 4422 Josephine Lane, Robbinsdale, MN 55422.....\$22.50.
- Merlin R. Pfarr, PO Box 424, Fairfax, MN 55332.....\$30.00.
- Gerald O. Pieper, 4095 80th Avenue SE., Clara City, MN 56222.....\$180.00.
- Michael F. Polley Jr., 4120 Greenleaf Court #111, Park City, IL 60085.....\$210.00.
- Raymond B. Ramey, 4151 Boone Avenue N. #208, New Hope, MN 55427.....\$30.00.
- David A. Ramsey, Route 1, Box 56, Detroit Lakes, MN 56501.....\$22.50.
- Frank V. Schimanski Jr., 846 4th Avenue SW., Faribault, MN 55021.....\$22.50.
- Donald M. Seguin, 5463 Maple Hill Road, Proctor, MN 55810.....\$247.00.
- John H. Skluzacek, 905 4th Avenue, Pine City, MN 55063.....\$22.50.
- Harold L. Skunes, 118 16th Avenue S., South St. Paul, MN 55075.....\$75.00.
- Robert K. Sorensen, 8457 Little Road, Bloomington, MN 55437.....\$82.50.
- Donald E. Stadvold, 9610 27th Avenue N., Plymouth, MN 55441.....\$127.50.
- Darel G. Taken Sr., 2813 Muriel Drive NW., Cedar Rapids, IA 52404.....\$90.00.
- Carl H. Tangen, 763 Mayhill Road, Maplewood, MN 55119.....\$22.50.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

Robert E. Tews, 115 County Highway 25, Lewiston, MN 55952.....\$52.50.

Charles E. Thobison, Route 1, Box 96, Pinewood, MN 56664.....\$225.00.

Odell I. Treangen, Route 2, Box 312, Mabel, MN 55954.....\$307.50.

Joseph T. Treb, 10521 Cedar Lake Road #313, Minnetonka, MN 55305.....\$127.50.

Luther M. Trelstad, Route 3, Box 46, Appleton, MN 56208.....\$180.00.

Paul I. Trembley, 2018 5th Avenue SE., Austin, MN 55912.....\$150.00.

Francis A. Trinka, 10670 North Shore Road, Waconia, MN 55387.....\$400.00.

Jack E. Tuttle, 3315 Vernon Street, Duluth, MN 55806.....\$75.00.

Ralph O. Tyler Jr., 3257 208th Lane NW., Anoka, MN 55303.....\$172.50.

Eugene T. Vancura, 13 Wrangler Drive, Wabasha, MN 55981.....\$105.00.

Herbert C. Vaneyll, 8986 Trista Lane, St. Bonifacius, MN 55375.....\$97.50.

Eugene F. Weber, 22500 Territorial Road, Rogers, MN 55374.....\$45.00.

Harry C. Werner Jr., 1206 2nd St NE #307, Minneapolis, MN 55413.....\$97.50.

Francis D. Whitney, 7444 Egan Drive, Savage, MN 55378.....\$150.00.

Subd. 6. **KOREAN; BENEFICIARY.** Audrey A. Allen-Ellison, 310 Vine Street, Monticello, MN 55362.....\$400.00.

Judith E. Mund, 17698 Goodhue Avenue, Nerstrand, MN 55053.....\$15.00.

Lavonne E. Perron, 12637 Akron Avenue, Rosemount, MN 55068.....\$45.00.

Diane A. Tryhen, Box 73, Carpenter, IA.....\$60.00.

Steven R. Weihe, 1322 Pearson Drive, Maplewood, MN 55109.....\$100.00.

Cheryl Weihe Polansky, 1322 Pearson Drive, Maplewood, MN 55109.....\$100.00.

Mary Lou W. Weydert, Box 297, New Richland, MN 56072.....\$377.00.

Subd. 7. **VIETNAM.** Susan A. Anderson, 2887 57th Avenue, Princeton, MN 55371.....\$100.00.

David L. Anglin, 715 E. Park Avenue, Staples, MN 56479.....\$100.00.

Bruce K. Ashton, 1900 4th Avenue NW, Austin, MN 55912.....\$100.00.

Kenneth E. Balfanz, 103 Locust Street, Monticello, MN 55362.....\$600.00.

Michael P. Barton, 7601 Logan Avenue S. #205, Richfield, MN 55423.....\$180.00.

Brian V. Bedell, 3022 Shoreline Drive, Wayzata, MN 55391.....\$195.00.

Carmen R. Bennett (Wolf), 12300 Geneva Way, Apple Valley, MN 55113.....\$285.00.

Marvin L. Britton, 218 Hiawatha Avenue, Wabasha, MN 55981.....\$600.00.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- Paul L. Buschette, 206 36th Street NW., Austin, MN 55912.....\$100.00.
- Dennis L. Caavwe, 9400 5th Avenue S., Bloomington, MN 55420.....\$300.00.
- Wayne H. Christensen, 1710 3rd Avenue SE., Austin, MN 55912.....\$600.00.
- Jerrold D. Christenson, 11825 County Road 152, Cologne, MN 55322.....\$210.00.
- Byron K. Ciminski, 215 Lindberg Drive NW., Little Falls, MN 56345.....\$600.00.
- Patrick J. Cooney, 515 Marshall Street NE., Minneapolis, MN 55413.....\$100.00.
- Randy L. Denison, 309 Viking Trail, Northfield, MN 55057.....\$75.00.
- Robert E. Drolet, 12531 Portland Avenue S., Burnsville, MN 55337.....\$100.00.
- Richard F. Erpelding, 1163 Laurel Avenue, Springfield, OR 97478.....\$300.00.
- Melville L. Evans, 18627 Heathcote Drive, Deephaven, MN 55391.....\$300.00.
- Patrick E. Flaherty, 1840 S. Quinn Avenue, Lakeland, MN 55043.....\$100.00.
- Dale L. Forrest, 2686 Mayer Lane, Maplewood, MN 55119.....\$600.00.
- James M. Ganley, RR 2, Box 147A, Pine City, MN 55063.....\$270.00.
- Larry L. Garner, 505 N. 27th Avenue W., Duluth, MN 55806.....\$300.00.
- Marvin E. Gerold, 28197 144th Street, Zimmerman, MN 55398.....\$100.00.
- Gary L. Goodman, 288 Mission Circle, Bloomington, MN 55420.....\$100.00.
- Shayne H. Graves, 7213 Perry Court W., Brooklyn Center, MN 55429.....\$100.00.
- Allan G. Haflund, 614 34th Avenue N., Minneapolis, MN 55412.....\$300.00.
- James H. Halvorson, 28950 145th Street NE., Regal, MN 56312.....\$300.00.
- Donald J. Handstad Jr., 18963 NE Jewel, Wyoming, MN 55092.....\$300.00.
- Gary L. Harju, Route 2, Box 239, Embarrass, MN 55732.....\$480.00.
- Larry D. Henry, RR 2, Box 938, Byron, MN 55920.....\$600.00.
- George H. Heppes, 4087 Douglas Drive, Crystal, MN 55422.....\$100.00.
- Warren E. Hodge, PO Box 333, Turtle Lake, WI 54889.....\$300.00.
- Franklin T. Homme, HC 1, Box 267, Salol, MN 56756.....\$300.00.
- John F. Hunt, 4867 Birch Lake Circle, White Bear Lake, MN 55110.....\$135.00.
- Jerry A. Hutchinson, 4252 146th Lane, Andover, MN 55304.....\$100.00.
- Dennis L. Jacob, 70 Lanark Crescent, Rochester, NY 14609.....\$600.00.
- Richard L. Jacobi, 861 19th Avenue SE., Minneapolis, MN 55414.....\$300.00.
- Bruce W. Johnson, 2550 Central Avenue NE., Minneapolis, MN 55418.....\$100.00.
- Bruce H. Johnson, 2125 E. 3rd Street, Duluth, MN 55812.....\$600.00.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout-

Paul L. Johnson, 11981 191 1/2 Avenue NW, #205, Elk River, MN 55330.....\$100.00.

Wallace D. Johnson, PO Box 133, Irene, SD 57037.....\$300.00.

Mervin A. Kaltvedt, 2712 N. River Drive, Moorhead, MN 56560.....\$120.00.

Douglas E. Kiser, Box 8, Sargeant, MN 55973.....\$300.00.

Richard J. Krivanek, 121 K N McKnight Road, St. Paul, MN 55119.....\$240.00.

Paul A. Kuball, 1444 Reaney Avenue, St. Paul, MN 55106.....\$100.00.

Kenneth A. Larson Jr., 14480 Bowers Drive NW, Box 184, Ramsey, MN 55303.....\$600.00.

Delbert E. Lindsay, 1963 Forest Street, Hastings, MN 55033.....\$600.00.

James T. Lupino, 6400 High Street, Rockford, MN 55373.....\$300.00.

Patrick L. Mausolf, 361 123rd Circle NW, Coon Rapids, MN 55448.....\$600.00.

Carol L. McDonald, PO Box 68, Merrifield, MN 56465.....\$300.00.

Charles F. Meinke, 25021 River Hills Court NW, Isanti, MN 55040.....\$600.00.

John M. Murtaugh, 1922 Arthur Street NE., Minneapolis, MN 55418.....\$300.00.

Edward M. Nevala, 7520 Highway 135 N., Embarrass, MN 55732.....\$100.00.

Jack A. Nevala, 4986 Road 38, Aurora, MN 55705.....\$300.00.

Vergil E. Nielsen, PO Box 38, Sandstone, MN 55072.....\$600.00.

Harvey P. Nienaber, 506 Hickman Drive, Sauk Centre, MN 56378.....\$300.00.

Bruce W. Nierad, 1710 Park Avenue, White Bear Lake, MN 55110.....\$600.00.

Milton D. Norstebon, 10466 County Road 1 SW., Kensington, MN 56343.....\$300.00.

Arthur W. Nygard, RR 3, Box 27, Waseca, MN 56093.....\$600.00.

Dennis G. Patterson, 7820 Hemmingway Avenue #2, Cottage Grove, MN 55016.....\$100.00.

Larry M. Peterson, 118 S. Linden Street, Northfield, MN 55057.....\$90.00.

Daniel T. Petrick, 844 3rd Avenue #302, Excelsior, MN 55331.....\$100.00.

Ronald D. Pierce, 10 Sunrise Avenue, Tonka Bay, MN 55331.....\$300.00.

David M. Radde, 2920 Highway 25, Watertown, MN 55388.....\$150.00.

Marlene M. Rahnasto, 25/12 SE 3rd Street, PO Box 361, Chisholm, MN 55719.....\$100.00.

Richard L. Rasmussen, 224 2nd Street N., Sabin, MN 56580.....\$600.00.

Edward R. Reinke, 2138 Buhl Avenue, North St. Paul, MN 55109.....\$100.00.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

Ronald R. Robinson, RR 1, Box 143H, Remer, MN 56672.....\$100.00.

Gary K. Rulli, 2815 135th Circle NW., Andover, MN 55304.....\$600.00.

James A. Sandberg, 151 Swift Avenue, Maynard, MN 56260.....\$300.00.

Richard A. Schneller, 5395 Jennie Lane, White Bear Township, MN 55110.....\$100.00.

Thomas A. Schroeder, 10235 Burned Oak Lane, Escondido, CA 92026.....\$300.00.

Terry L. Schultz, 124 Lawrence Boulevard E., Wabasha, MN 55981.....\$210.00.

Michael C. Schumann, 2766 Mayer Lane, Maplewood, MN 55119.....\$195.00.

Richard A. Sebenaler, 1171 G Larochele Terrace, Sunnyvale, CA 94089.....\$600.00.

Donald I. Sevre, 140 Bedford Street SE., Minneapolis, MN 55414.....\$600.00.

William L. Smith, 11857 Larch Street NW., Coon Rapids, MN 55448.....\$100.00.

Terrance L. Spande, PO Box 79, Mayer, MN 55360.....\$300.00.

Michael J. Staton, PO Box 224, Clontarf, MN 56226.....\$100.00.

John S. Stavlo, 7800 Maple Hill Road D-11, Corcoran, MN 55340.....\$100.00.

Archie W. Stiyer, Route 1, Box 112, Ogema, MN 56569.....\$255.00.

Burton L. Svedine, 105 SW 11th Avenue, Austin, MN 55912.....\$600.00.

Richard J. Tazzell Sr., 11009 Jefferson Circle N., Champlin, MN 55316.....\$300.00.

William F. Tinsley, 1024 John Avenue, Superior, WI 54880.....\$120.00.

Charles E. Toivonen, 14324 286th Avenue, Zimmerman, MN 55398.....\$105.00.

Michael J. Wenzel, 4635 Lyndale Avenue N. #3, Minneapolis, MN 55412.....\$300.00.

Donald C. Westley, 3301 Glenhurst Avenue S., St. Louis Park, MN 55416.....\$600.00.

Lawrence D. Whalen Jr., 5427 N. Shore Drive, Duluth, MN 55804.....\$210.00.

Duane J. Wille, 32880 Oasis Road, Center City, MN 55012.....\$360.00.

Sally A. Wittaker, 4349 Monroe Street NE., Columbia Heights, MN 55421.....\$300.00.

Steven Y. Wolverton, 17952 Clayton Avenue E., Rosemount, MN 55068.....\$100.00.

Subd. 8. VIETNAM; BENEFICIARY, Loretta Bocoock, 1680 Howard Drive D4, North Mankato, MN 56003.....\$600.00.

Clarice Emily Swanson-Nyberg, 1840 58th Court E., Inver Grove Heights, MN 55077.....\$180.00.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

Marjorie L. Petricka, 703 Highland Avenue, Northfield, MN 55071.....\$165.00.

Subd. 9. **ADDITIONAL VALID CLAIMS.** The commissioner of veterans affairs shall pay any other claims for adjusted compensation that were filed with the department before January 1, 1996, if the commissioner determines that the claims are valid. The commissioner may seek reimbursement for any claims paid under this subdivision from the joint subcommittee on claims.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1994, section 3.739, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **EVALUATION AND PAYMENT OF CLAIMS.** Claims of \$500 or less subject to this section shall be investigated by the state or local agency responsible for supervising the work to determine if the claim is valid and if the loss is covered by the claimant's insurance. The investigating agency shall submit all appropriate claims to the department of corrections. Subject to the limitations contained in subdivision 2a, the department shall pay the portion of an approved claim that is not covered by the claimant's insurance. This payment shall be made within a reasonable time. On or before the first day of each legislative session, the department shall submit to the appropriate committees of the senate and the house of representatives a list of the claims paid by it during the preceding calendar year and shall be reimbursed by legislative appropriation for the claims paid. For the purposes of this paragraph, in the case of a juvenile claimant the term "claimant's insurance" includes the insurance of the juvenile's parents if the juvenile is covered by the insurance.

A claim in excess of \$500, and a claim that was not paid by the department may be presented to, heard, and determined by the appropriate committees of the senate and the house of representatives and, if approved, shall be paid pursuant to legislative claims procedure.

No juvenile claimant receiving payment under this section may be identified by name either in the list of claimants submitted by the department or in the legislative appropriation.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1994, section 3.739, subdivision 2a, is amended to read:

Subd. 2a. **LIMITATIONS.** Compensation paid under this section is limited to reimbursement for medical expenses and compensation for permanent total or partial disability or death. Reimbursement for medical expenses under this section is limited to the amount which would be payable for the same expenses under the medical assistance program authorized under chapter 256B. No compensation shall be paid under this section for pain and suffering. Payments made under this section shall be reduced by any proceeds received by the claimant or the medical care provider from any insurance policy covering the loss. For the purposes of this section, "insurance policy" does not include the medical assistance program authorized under chapter 256B or the general assistance medical care program authorized under chapter 256D.

Sec. 9. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This act is effective the day following final enactment.

Presented to the governor March 19, 1996

Signed by the governor March 21, 1996, 1:32 p.m.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.